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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

The Trustees present their annual report together with the audited financial statements of Agape Multi Academy 
Trust (~he Trust' or ~he charitable company') for the period 31 August 2025. The annual report serves the 
purposes of both a trustees' report, and a directors' report and strategic report under company law. 

The trust operates 1 all through academy in Wargrave, Berkshire and 1 secondary academy in Maidenhead, 
Berkshire. Its academies have a combined pupil capacity of 2,666 and had a roll of 2,662 in the school census 
on 15th May 2025. 

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 

Constitution 

The Trust, which was incorporated on 24 June 2011 and opened as a Trust on 01 July 2011, is a company 
limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's memorandum and articles of association 
are the primary governing documents of the Trust. The Trustees of Agape Multi Academy Trust are also the 
directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company operates as 
Agape Multi Academy Trust. 

The Trust changed its registered name on 2oth February 2024 to Agape Mu~i Academy Trust from The Piggott 
Church of England School. A new memorandum and articles of association were filed at Companies House on 
25th February 2024. 

Details of the trustees who served throughout the period and to the date these accounts are approved are 
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1. 

Members' Liability 

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it 
being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as 
may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member. 

Trustees' Indemnities 

Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance purchased by the Trust to cover the liability of the trustees arising 
from negligent acts, errors or commissions occurring whilst on Trust business. The limit of this indemnity is 
£10,000,000. 

Principal Activities 

The principal activity of the Trust is to advance for the public benefit education by establishing, maintaining, 
carrying on, managing and developing a broad and balanced curriculum. 

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees 

On 01 March 2024 governors who had served either of the predecessor schools were appointed as trustees or 
governors sitting on the Local Governing Committee of the Trust. The Trust Board was additionally 
complemented by trustees external to the predecessor schools; those trustees being appointed on the basis of 
their skills and experience. 

The Trust shall have the following trustees as set out in its Articles of Association: 

• up to 3 trustees appointed by the Members by ordinary resolution; 
• up to 9 trustees appointed by the Diocesan Board of Education; 
• co-opted trustees appointed by the Directors!Trustees. 

Each Local Governing Committee of the Trust Board (otherwise known as the local tier) has at least 2 parent 
governors in compliance with the Articles of Association. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

Trustees and governors are appointed for a 4-year period, except that this time limit does not apply to ex officio 
appointments. Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of trustee or governor, any trustee or governor 
can be re-appointed or re-elected. 

When appointing new trustees and governors, the Trust Board gives consideration to the skills and experience 
mix of existing trustees and governors in order to ensure the Trust Board and its Local Governing Committees 
have the necessary skills to contribute fully to the Trust's development. 

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees 

The training and induction provided for new trustees will depend upon their existing experience but would include 
a tour of the Trust and a chance to meet staff and pupils. All Trustees are provided with copies of policies, 
procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents they will need to undertake their role as 
Trustees. As we envisage only one new trustee a year, induction tends to be done ad hoc and is tailored 
specifically to the individual. Advantage is taken of specific courses offered by various other organisations as 
appropriate. All trustees will be offered induction training through external partnerships. 

Trustee training and advice is accessed through Governors' Support Services, National Governors Association, 
The Key, the Oxford Diocesan Board of Education and other external providers. New trustees have the 
opportunity to undertake National Governor Association and GovernorHub training. All involved in governance 
receive regular National Governor Association and the Key updates. 

Organisational Structure 

The Trust Board meets at least five times a year. Its committees meet at least twice a year. The Trust Board 
establishes an overall framework for the governance of the Trust and agrees the structure of the Trust Board, its 
committees and link trustees. It monitors the activities of the committees through minutes of their meetings and 
other reports. It also agrees the scheme of delegation. The Trust Board will, when necessary, appoint trustees to 
statutory and other panels, and may also, from time to time, establish working groups to perform specific tasks 
over a limited timescale. 

During the year, the Trust Board was made up of committees who had direct responsibility for different aspects 
ofschoollife as follows: 

• Curriculum: 
To ensure the overall curriculum provision for cohorts, groups and phases of children meets the standards and 
expectations of the Trust and the entitlement for each community. 

• Finance & Resources: 
To deal with all matters relating to finance, estates, digital and other resources (excluding human resources) 

• People & Pay: 
To manage, support and develop human resources in terms of performance management, pay, employee 
relations, wellbeing, equality and diversity. 

• Local Governing Committee of Attwood School: 
To support and deliver the school's strategic objectives, vision and strategy, hold the school to account for the 
educational performance of its pupils, to set an annual budget, provide a vehicle for stakeholder engagement, 
manage the school's admission process, oversee the provision for SEND and ensure compliance with 
safeguarding requirements. 

• Local Governing Committee of The Piggott School: 
To support and deliver the school's strategic objectives, vision and strategy, hold the school to account for the 
educational performance of its pupils, to set an annual budget, provide a vehicle for stakeholder engagement, 
manage the school's admission process, oversee the provision for SEND and ensure compliance with 
safeguarding requirements. 

Each Committee has its own terms of reference detailing the responsibilities discharged to it. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

The following decisions are reserved to the full Trust Board: 

• to consider any proposals for changes to the status or constitution of the Trust and its committee structure; 
• to appoint or remove the Chair and I or Vice Chair; 
• to appoint the CEO; 
• to appoint the Company Secretary; 
• approve the Trust core offer; and 
• approve new academies to join the Trust. 

Trustees are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual development plan and budget, approving 
the annual statutory accounts, monitoring the Trust by the use of budgets and other data, and making the major 
decisions about the direction of the Trust, capital expenditure and senior staff appointments. 

Trustees have delegated aspects of governance and day-to-day oversight of school leadership in each 
respective school to a Local Governing Committee. Trustees have devolved the day-to-day management of the 
Trust to Headteachers and the Senior Leadership Teams ('SL T'). The SL T comprises our Headteachers, 
Deputy Headteachers and Assistant Headteachers. The Local Governing Committees and SL T's implement the 
policies laid down by the Trustees and report back to them on performance. 

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel 

The appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy is reviewed annually, including reference to 
comparisons with other schools to ensure that Agape Multi Academy Trust remains sensitive to the broader 
issues of pay and employment conditions locally and nationally. 

Apart from the CEO, trustees are not employed by the Trust or receive remuneration for their role. The pay of the 
CEO and other key management personnel was determined by the Trustees alter drawing up a job description 
and person specification and benchmarking these against the same roles in other trusts both locally and 
nationally. 

Trade union facility time 

The Trust currently contracts through Wokingham Borough Council for union facilities time to access 
representative who work across schools and who are training and experienced union officials. The cost in 2025 
was £3,536. 

Relevant union officials -The Piggott School 

Numoer ot empioyee~ who ·ue<e rel(fl;ant tmioo atffcJHfs dun:'JQ the Fti/!-tfm& equivalenT ert1(N()yee 
relev:aN per'od number 

3 3 

Relevant union officials - Attwood Church of England School 

N:JmOOr Of employees VihO WGt<? re!event union Offlc\S!S dunng tne FWHime eQ1J!v:a1M:t empio_ye.e 
relevant pefi<Jd number 

2 1.87 

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations 

There are no related parties which either control or significantly influence the decisions and operations of the 
Trust. There are no sponsors or formal Parent Teacher Associations associated with the Trust which either 
control or significantly influence the decisions and operations of the Trust. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons) 

During the reporting period, the Trust has continued to develop and embed practices that promote meaningful 
engagement with employees across all academies within the MAT. These efforts are designed to foster 
transparency, inclusivity, and shared ownership of our mission to deliver high-quality education. 

• lnfonnation Sharing: The Trust ensures that employees are regularly informed about matters of concern 
and strategic developments through a variety of channels, including staff briefings and newsletters. This 
promotes clarity and alignment across the organisation. 

• Shared Awareness of Perfonnance Factors: The Trust promotes a common understanding of the factors 
influencing organisational performance through transparent reporting, collaborative goal-setting, and open 
dialogue between leadership and staff. This includes sharing data on pupil outcomes, financial performance, 
and strategic priorities. 

• Support for Disabled Persons: The Trust is committed to equality of opportunity in employment. 
Applications from disabled persons are welcomed and assessed on merit. Where existing employees 
become disabled, we make reasonable adjustments to support their continued employment and wellbeing. 
Training, career development, and promotion opportunities are equally accessible, and we work to ensure 
that all staff-regardless of ability-can thrive within our organisation. 

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Trust 

The Trust recognises the importance of fostering strong, transparent, and collaborative relationships with 
suppliers, customers, service providers, and other stakeholders involved in supporting its operations. 

• Supplier Engagement: We maintain fair and ethical procurement processes to ensure value, quality, and 
reliability in our supply chain. Our approach encourages long-term partnerships with suppliers who align with 
our organisational values and standards. 

• Stakeholder Collaboration: The Trust actively collaborates with a range of external partners, including local 
authorities, contractors, and community organisations, to support operational effectiveness and service 
delivery. 

• Sustainability and Ethical Considerations: The Trust is committed to responsible business practices, 
encouraging suppliers and partners to demonstrate sustainable and inclusive approaches. 

Through these efforts, the Trust aims to uphold high standards of governance, accountability, and cooperation in 
all its business relationships. 

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES 

Objects and Aims 

The principal objects of the Trust, as set out in its Articles of Association, are to: 

• advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the 
generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing a school, 
offering a broad and balanced curriculum; and 

• promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of Maidenhead, Wargrave, Twyford, Charvil, and surrounding 
villages and the surrounding area the provision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation of 
individuals who have need of such facilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity, disablement, financial 
hardship or social and economic circumstances for the public at large in the interests of social welfare and 
with the object of improving the condition of life of the said inhabitants. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

Agape Trust Strategic Priorities 2025 - 2029 

Ediucal1onal Culture and Leading and GroWing and Operational 
Standards Inclusion Developing DevelOping oor Effectiveness 

""""'" Communtty 
Outcomes Safeguarditll Moral & Ethical I rust Growth Finaociaf 
Outc0Jll€s in our A deep culture of Le:adersh ip The Trust vAll gxow Sttst:ainability 
scilools to be in the safeguarding is AI! members ot oor in a sustaina'We Schools wrthm the 
top 10% natiooaMy embedded ;:om:mumly feB! way Trust wU! have 
for pr<Jgress ror au throughout v:eJcomed anc batancad budgets 
Jeamer'2 SChOol in the valued and the Trust wtR 

maintalo adequate 
reserves 

Quality of Atmndana!< ProfeSSlOflial outreach Operaoonal 
Ediucabon Atrendance for air Development The Trust will Sustainabiltty 
All sdloo.!s to be group::; o11earners The Trust ¥,ill provide 1raini~rg TM Trust wHt f!wesf 
.JUdged at least ts abovt> local and provide and opportur.it1es and resourues tc ensure 
Good. national averages fad!itate hlgh :secondments to all SChQO!S QJ)efate 
Church Sdtools quality, relevant assist clher effidently, 
recefve judgement 1 CPD opportumtles :sclmoJs eftecttve!y and 
forS!Arli!S tor stiff, Governors .sustamab!:t 

<>m.l trustees. 
Schools of Clloo:e Behaviour and Employer of Systan Smtutory 
Schoals wiR be Inclusioo Choice leadership Complia!lce 
oversubsatbed and El<_dusinn and The Trust's The Trust will The Trust vti!f 
have waiting Fsts for suspension rates weiJbelng purucles cool:Jrrue to opaate a best 
admtsslon are be!fiW na!:iooat ami practice lead tn oootribule to wider practice model to 

and local avera{les the recrult~r:~ent and system leadership ensure statutory 
ret~~ of high· 

I qu:ar staff 
compliance 
thmirghout 

Our Vision 

To be a collaboration of schools which enhances the educational experiences and outcomes for children, 
maximising the benefits of working together, whilst maintaining the individual culture and ethos of each individual 
school. 

Objectives, Strategies and Activities 

The key priorities for the period are contained in the Trust's Strategic Development Plan which is available from 
the CEO. 

STRATEGIC REPORT 

The Trust has continued to work on the priorities set out in the Strategic Development Plan as approved by the 
Trust Board. 

The Trust faces a number of principal risks as set out in the Trusts' risk registers. 

The Trust uses various financial instruments including cash and items such as trade debtors and trade creditors 
that arise directly from its operations. 

The existence of these financial instruments exposes the Trust to a number of financial risks which are 
described in more detail below. 

The main risks arising from the financial statements are cash flow, interest rate risk and credit risk. The Trust 
seeks to manage financial risk by ensuring sufficient liquidity is available to meet foreseeable needs and to 
invest cash assets safely and profitably. The Trust seeks to manage its cash reserves to ensure liabilities are 
settled as they fall due. 

Public Benefit 

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the requirement in the Charities Act 2011 to have due regard 
to the Charity Commission general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers or duties. They have 
referred to this guidance when reviewing the Trust's aims and objectives and in planning its future activities. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

The Trust aims to advance for the public benefit education in the areas of Maidenhead, Wargrave, Twyford, 
Charvil and the surrounding area, offering a broad curriculum. 

The Trust also allows use of its facilities for recreational and other leisure time occupation for the community at 
large in the interests of social welfare and with the interest of improving the life of that community. 

The Trust is committed to continual improvement which is achieved in a number of ways, including improvement 
planning, review meetings, continual professional development, lesson observations, performance management, 
self-evaluation, data analysis and action planning. 

The Piggott School 

The total number of pupils in the period ended 31 August 2025 was 1 ,879. 

Wargarve secondary 

The Piggott School is proud to announce another excellent set of A Level and Level 3 Vocational results. The 
students, and staff, have all worked exceptionally hard and this is reflected in the outstanding grades awarded. 
With over 220 students entered, our A Level pass rate was 99%. 32% of our results were graded at A*-A. 65% 
of our results were graded at A*-B, and 85% graded A*-C. The average point score per A level entry was 39 
points, making the average grade a B. Our Vocational Level 3 pass rate for Applied General qualifications was 
100%, with Distinction• to Merit being 90%. 

In addition to this, the GCSE results achieved are the best in the school's history with an Attainment 8 score of 
62. This score is well above the national average, demonstrating consistently outstanding academic 
performance. A 90% pass rate (9-4) across all entries is an achievement to be proud of, and we are thrilled to 
share that 43% of all entries were awarded the highest attainment threshold of 7 or above. 

93% of students passed English, 93% passed Mathematics and 88% passed at least two sciences at Level 4 or 
above. 46% of students achieved a 7 or above in English, and 45% achieved a 7 or above in Maths. These 
results are an incredible achievement. Our combined English and Mathematics Level 4+ pass rate is 91% and 
our five GCSEs or more Level 4+ including English and Mathematics is 90%. Exceptional results were achieved 
in the majority of qualifications with a significant number of subjects attaining an excellent pass rate of over 90%. 
18 subjects achieved over 90% at 9-4 and 7 subjects excelled with 100% 9-4. In addition to the GCSE success 
outlined above, we are proud to share that our students also achieved outstanding outcomes in our vocational 
accreditations, Creative 1-Media and Dance. 

The exceptional results achieved by our students this year will open doors and opportunities for an exciting future 
for many. We are extremely proud of the achievements of students and staff, reflecting the unrelenting 
commitment and dedication in our school community. 

Charvil Primary 

AI EYFS, 78% of pupils achieved a Good Level of Development. At Key Stage 2, the outcomes were Reading 
with 90% at ARE+ (Age Related Expectation) and 62% at GDS (Greater Depth Standard); Grammar, 
Punctuation and Spelling with 69% at ARE+ and 31% at GDS; and Maths with 90% at ARE+ and 41% at GDS. In 
writing, 69% of pupils achieved ARE+ and 14% GDS. 

Altwood Church of England School 

The total number of pupils in the period ended 31 August 2025 was 794. 

Altwood Church of England School has continued to perform well at both GCSE and A Level with some excellent 
individual and collective resu~s in the summer of 2025. These results highlight the hard work and dedication of 
staff and students alike and reinforce the reputation of Attwood School as a great place to learn and work. 

At GCSE, 86% of students achieved a Grade 4+ with our most able student gaining 8 grade 9s. Students with 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

SEN needs make progress in line with their peers showing the support we offer to all our students irrespective of 
their learning needs. 65% of our GCSE cohort achieved a Grade 4+ in English, with 10% achieving a Grade 7-9. 
In Maths, 54% achieved a Grade 4+ and 12% a grade 7-9. 

This year saw 83% of KS5 students been awarded A *-C grades, or the vocational equivalent. An impressive 21% 
of students achieved an average of A*-A grades in their chosen subjects. This enabled our students to move 
onto further education of their choice induding in the fields of Chemistry, Physics, Zoology, Mathematics, 
Computing as well as Law. 

These outcomes highlight our vision of every child being known, valued and supported to succeed and 
strengthen our determination to provide an excellent education for all in an indusive and caring environment. 

Key Performance Indicators 

Altwood Church of England School was inspected by Ofsted in 2023 and received an excellent report which 
highlighted so many areas of wonderful practice. Attwood Church of England School was inspected by SlAMS in 
October 2025 and received a wonderful report which induded the comments: 

'Students and adults flourish in this deeply compassionate community', 'a calm and purposeful learning 
environment in which people treat each other well', 'The House system generates a deep cohesion across the 
school', and 'Students' clear understanding of the vision ... informs their actions and helps them develop into 
articulate agents for change.' 

The Piggott School was inspected by SlAMS in 2023 and received a glowing report. It was also visited by Ofsted 
in 2023, under an ungraded inspection, and received another excellent report. 

A new Ofsted Framework is due to commence in November 2025. The school has received appropriate training 
in regard to the new framework and inspection toolkit. School improvement plans reflect the new measures and 
inspection themes within the framework, and the plans will explicitly prepare the school for the next inspection. 
The inspection will take place within the normal inspection cycle. 

Although the Academy's Funding Agreement is not subject to a specific carry forward limit on the amount of 
GAG funding, the main financial performance indicator is the level of reserves held at the balance sheet date 
and, in particular, the amount of GAG funding carried forward at the balance sheet date. At31 August2025, the 
balance of the GAG Restricted Fund was £144,158, which is after a transfer of£90, 102to the General Fund. 

As the majority of the Trust's funding is based on pupil numbers, pupil numbers are also a key performance 
indictor. As noted above, pupil numbers at the most recent census were 2, 793 which is an increase of over 
7.84% from the previous census. 

As a result, the ratio of GAG funding per pupil was £4,752 for the period. 

Staffing costs are another key performance indicator for the Trust and the percentage of total staff costs to GAG 
funding for the period was 127.21%, while the percentage ofstaff costs to total costs was 77.45%. 

Going Concern 

After making appropriate enqu1nes, the Board of Trustees, including all Committees, has a reasonable 
expectation that the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. 
Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies note of 
the financial statements. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

Promoting the Success of the Company 

In accordance with Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006, the Trustees of the Multi-Academy Trust have acted 
in a manner they consider, in good faith, to be most likely to promote the long-term success and sustainability of 
the Trust. In doing so, they have had regard to a range of stakeholders and factors as outlined below: 

• Long-Term Decision Making: Strategic decisions are made with a focus on long-term outcomes, ensuring 
the Trust remains resilient, financially sustainable, and capable of delivering high-quality services across its 
academies. This includes investment in infrastructure, technology, and staff development. 

• Employee Interests: Trustees recognise the importance of staff wellbeing, engagement, and professional 
growth. Regular consultation, transparent communication, and inclusive policies ensure that employee 
voices are heard and considered in decision-making. 

• Business Relationships: The Trust fosters strong relationships with suppliers, contractors, and service 
providers through fair procurement practices, collaborative working, and mutual accountability. These 
relationships are essential to maintaining operational excellence. 

• Community and Environmental Impact: The Trust is committed to being a responsible member of the 
community. It supports local initiatives, promotes environmental sustainability through energy-efficient 
practices, and ensures its operations contribute positively to the areas it serves. 

• High Standards of Conduct: Trustees uphold and promote a culture of integrity, transparency, and 
accountability. Policies and procedures are regularly reviewed to ensure compliance with legal and ethical 
standards, and to maintain the Trust's reputation for responsible governance. 

• Fairness Between Members: Decisions are made with fairness and impartiality, ensuring that all 
academies within the Trust are treated equitably and benefit from shared resources, expertise, and strategic 
support. 

• Promotion of Good Business Conduct: The Trust has embedded robust governance frameworks, 
financial controls, and risk management procedures to ensure responsible conduct across all areas of 
operation. 

• Long-Term Interests of the Trust: All strategic planning and operational decisions are guided by the 
Trust's overarching objectives and long-term vision. Trustees regularly review performance, risks, and 
opportunities to ensure continued success and sustainability. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW 

Financial Review 

The majority of the Trust income is received from the DfE via the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants, the use 
of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the DfE during the period ended 31 
August 2025 and the associated expenditure of these grants are shown as Restricted Funds in the Statement of 
Financial Activities. 

The individual Academies in the Trust also receives grants for fixed assets from the DfE and other organisations 
and funders and these are shown as Restricted Fixed Asset Funds in the Statement of Financial Activities. The 
balance of the Restricted Fixed Asset fund is reduced by the depreciation charges on the assets acquired using 
these funds. 

During the period ended 31 August 2025, the total expenditure of £20,858,510 was covered by the recurrent 
grant funding from the DfE, together with other incoming resources. The excess of total expenditure over 
incoming resources for the period was £564,350. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

The fixed assets held by the Trust are used exclusively for providing education and associated support services 
to the pupils of the Trust. 

The balance of total funds held at 31 Augusl2025 were £21,479,559 which comprised of the following: 

Restricted Funds (excluding Pension Liability) 
Restricted Pension Liability Fund 
Restricted Fixed Asset Fund 
Unrestricted Funds 

£144,158 
(£18,000) 
£20,524,215 
£829,186 

The key financial policies reviewed and adopted during the period included the Financial Procedures Policies 
and Manual, which lays out the framework for the Trust's financial management, including financial 
responsibilities of the Trust, LGCs, Headteachers, Managers, Budget holders and other staff, as well as the 
delegated authorities for spending. The other financial policies reviewed and adopted during the period included 
Charges and Lettings. 

Reserves Policy 

The Trustees, through the Finance and Resources Committee, review the level of reserves across all 
Academies within the Trust annually as part of the budget-setting process. This review includes an assessment 
of income and expenditure streams, the alignment of income with commitments, and the composition of 
reserves. Particular attention is given to anticipated future income levels from the Department for Education 
(DfE). The level of reserves is monitored consistently, and where feasible, Trustees maintain a prudent level of 
resources to address long-term renewal needs and unforeseen contingencies. 

Trustees set budgets and reserve levels based on a three-year medium-term financial plan. This plan ensures 
the Trust can continue to provide excellent education by maintaining sufficient liquid reserves to buffer against 
potential reductions in funding. This approach helps minimise any future impact on students' education. In the 
event of a decline in pupil numbers, Trustees utilise reserves accordingly. 
Any academy presenting a year-end surplus exceeding 5% of its funding is required to submit a robust spending 
plan outlining how the surplus funds will be used. The plan must align with reducing identified risks and 
supporting academy improvement. Trustees ratify these plans. 
Surpluses exceeding 5% may be retained centrally if: 
• An academy fails to submit a spending plan within one month of the CFOO's request 
• The plan is inadequate-i.e., it does not reduce risk or support school improvement 
• The plan is not implemented 
• There is a history of carrying excessive surplus funds 

Investment Policy 

The Trust may invest unrestricted reserves in short-term accounts (where funds are invested for one year or 
less) provided by one of the main UK High Street Banks. This sum is reviewed by the CEO and CFOO on an 
ongoing basis. Access to these reserves must be available at short notice in case of emergency, albeit with a 
loss of any interest accrued. Multiple accounts are used to limit any loss of interest payable in the case of 
emergency usage. The restricted reserves balance can also be invested in long-term fixed accounts with a UK 
High Street Bank for 1 year. 

Cash at bank, at monthly lowest, has historically been at least £200K above reserve levels. This differential will 
be monitored regularly. The Trust may invest this differential in short-term accounts provided by one of the main 
UK High Street Banks. This sum is reviewed by the CEO and CFOO an ongoing basis. 

Any such investment over the previous year's unrestricted and restricted reserves, as noted in the annual 
accounts, is advised to the Finance and Resources Committee. 

The objectives of these accounts are to hold the Trust's reserves allow risk whilst maximising interest payable. 

The key financial policies reviewed and adopted during the period included the Financial Procedures Policies 
and Manual, which lays out the framework for the Trust's financial management, including financial 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

responsibilities of the Trust Board, Local Governing Committees, Headteachers, managers, budget holders and 
other staff, as well as the delegated authorities for spending. 

Principal Risks and Uncertainties 

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Trust are as follows: 

Financial 
The Trust has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the ESFA. In the period, 
approximately 74.24% of the Trust's incoming resources was ultimately Government funded and whilst this level 
is expected to continue, there is no assurance that Government policy or practice will remain the same or that 
public funding will continue at the same levels or on the same tenns. 

Failures in governance and I or management 
The risk in this area arises from the potential failure to effectively manage the Trust's finances, internal controls, 
compliance with regulations and legislation, statutory returns etc. The Trustees continue to review and ensure 
appropriate measures are in place to mitigate these risks. 

Reputational 
The continuing success of the Trust is dependent on continuing to attract students in sufficient numbers by 
maintaining the highest educational standards. To mitigate this risk, the Trust Board ensure that pupil success 
and achievement are closely monitored and reviewed. 

Safeguarding and child protection 
The Trust Board and Governors continue to ensure that the highest standards are maintained in the areas of 
selection and monitoring of staff, the operation of child protection policies and procedures, health & safety and 
discipline. 

Staffing 
The success of the Trust is reliant on the quality of its staff so the Trust Board and Governors monitor and review 
policies and procedures to ensure continued development and training of staff as well as ensuring there is clear 
succession planning. 

Fraud and mismanagement of funds 
The Trust has engaged its external auditors to perform a program of work aimed at checking and reviewing the 
financial systems and records as required by the Academies Financial Handbook. All finance staff receive 
training to keep them up to date with financial practice requirements and to develop their skills in this area. 

The Trust has continued to strengthen its risk management process throughout the period by improving the 
process and ensuring staff awareness. A Risk Register is maintained and reviewed and updated on a regular 
basis. 

Estates Management 
The Trust continues to ensure the buildings are safe, well maintained and compliant with all relevant legislation 
with regards to Health and safety. A recent audit found expected key controls and systems were in place and a 
Trust level action plan is being prepared for any recommendations. Surveys in the previous year confirmed have 
confirmed all of the Trust buildings to be clear of Reinforced Autoclaved Aerated Concrete (RAAC). Regular 
reviews are carried out on all buildings to check condition and safety. Site development for individual sites is 
prepared and reviewed regularly. 

Risk Management 

The Trustees and the Governors have implemented a system to assess risks that the Trust faces, especially in 
the operational areas (such as in relation to teaching, health & safety and school trips) and in relation to the 
control of finances. They have introduced systems, including operational procedures and internal financial 
controls in order to minimise risk. Where significant financial risk still remains, they have ensured they have 
adequate insurance cover. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

The Trust has an effective system of internal financial controls and this is explained in more detail in the 
Statement of Internal Control. 

Financial and Risk Management Objectives and Policies 

The Trustees have developed a shared Risk Appetite to guide decision-making and oversight across the Trust. 
While a formal Risk Management Strategy has not been adopted, the Trust has collaboratively agreed on the 
levels of risk it is willing to accept in pursuit of its objectives. This shared understanding informs operational 
planning, financial management, and governance. 

A Risk Register is maintained and regularly updated to reflect emerging risks and changes in the Trust's 
operating environment. It is formally reviewed on an annual basis and discussed at Trustee meetings. The 
register includes financial, operational, and compliance risks, with particular attention given to areas such as 
funding, staffing, facilities, and educational delivery. 

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed and have implemented systems and 
internal controls to mitigate these risks. Where significant financial risks remain, the Trust Board ensures that 
appropriate insurance cover is in place. 

Key financial risks include: 
• Revenue funding pressures due to falling pupil numbers 
• Changes in special educational needs (SEN) funding arrangements 
• Rising employment and premises costs, which are expected to tighten budgets in future years 

The financial health of the Trust is formally reviewed every term. Trustees receive regular reports comparing 
actual performance against budget forecasts, enabling timely and informed oversight. 
At the balance sheet date, the Trust had no significant liabilities from trade creditors or debtors that would 
materially affect liquidity. 

The Trustees acknowledge the deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme as a significant potential 
liability. However, they are confident that the Trust can meet its annual contribution commitments for the 
foreseeable future, thereby minimising the associated risk. This approach aligns with Charity Commission 
guidance on defined benefit pension schemes. 

Plans For Future Periods 

The Trust strives to continually improve the educational experience for all pupils, equipping them with the 
qualifications, skills and character to follow their chosen pathway, whether it be into further and higher education 
or employment, as well as promoting the continued professional development of its staff. 

The Trust's plans for future periods include improving the teaching facilities by roofing replacement, electrical 
and fire safety works. converting a classroom into a science laboratory, completing a new school hall, sixth-form 
and dining facility, toilet upgrades together with renovations and carpeting of classrooms. 

Fundraising 

The Piggott School 

The Piggott School is proud to have a dedicated and hardworking PTA operating at both the Wargrave and 
Charvil sites. Their core purpose is to raise funds that directly benefit the children and young people in our school 
community. 

Parents of Year 7 students, as well as those whose children are studying Technology subjects at exam level, are 
kindly invited to make a voluntary contribution to help cover the cost of materials. 

We are deeply grateful to the many parents who have generously given both their time and financial support, 
particularly towards the development of our beautiful Reflection Garden. 
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(A company limited by guarantee) 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

In addition, the school has been fortunate to receive substantial donations from a number of charitable 
organisations and local businesses, including the Polehampton Charity and the David Brownlow Charitable 
Foundation. 

Altwood Church of England School 

The school operates a School Fund to which parents and others can donate funds, and gift aid is claimed on the 
donations (If the appropriate declaration is completed). Parents are also asked for voluntary contributions 
towards 'Tech" subject resources. The school do not use any external fundraisers. 

In addition, the school actively pursues funding from other charitable organisations such as the Spoore Merry 
and Rixman Foundation, to provide additional resources and opportunities to the Attwood Church of England 
School Community. 

Streamlined Energy and Caribon Reporting 

UK Gmenhoosa gas MUssions. and 1 septMnber 2024 to 31 August 1 Septe.mber :MJ3 to 31 August 
energy use data tor the period 2025 1024 

Energy consumption used to cafc:u!ate 2.098.362 1,221 ,58.8 
emissions (k\'Vh) 

Energy oonsumptlnn break down . Gas 1,356,354 . Gas 611,3.2{) 
\kV\'h) (opl:iooa!) . Electricity- 741,998 . E1eci:Jicitt- 61G,263 

., gas, 
• e!ectnc1y, . • transport fuel 

Scone 1 em!ssions in metric toones 249.43 111.81 
C02e 
Gas consurnpt1on 
Owned transport- mini-buses 
Total s-cope 1 
Seooe 2 <emissior1s in metric toones 143.4!0 126.36 
co2e 
Purdtast;;d e!ec!ncity 
Soooe 3 emissioos in: metric toones ~/A NiA 
C02e 
8usm€ss tfavel in employee owned 
whides 
Total gross emissilJns in mebic:toones 392.83 233.17 
C02e 

Intensity ratio \U96 {)092 
Tonnes C02e per p(Jpli 

Attwood Church of England School joined the Trust on 1 March 2024; therefore, prior year data reflects only six 
months of emissions for the school. 

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS 

The Trust and its Trustees do not act as Custodian Trustees of any other charity. 

AUDITOR 

In so far as the Trustees are aware: 

• there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and 
• the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant 

audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information. 
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The Trustees' report was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the company directors, on 
and signed on its behalf by: 

R Thiele 
Chair of Trustees 
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Scope of responsibility 

AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Agape Multi Academy Trust has an 
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is designed to 
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable 
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. 

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Guide and competency 
framework for governance. 

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEO, as Accounting Officer, for 
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and 
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Agape 
Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the 
Board of Trustees, including all Committees, any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. 
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Governance 

AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The information on governance included here supplements that information that is described in the Governors' 
Report and in the Governors' Responsibilities Statement. The Trust Board formally met 5 times during the 
period ending 31st August2025. 

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows: 

Trustee 

R Thiele, Chair of Trustees 
J Mclucas 
TWilson 
D Gray- CEO 
J Bolodeoku 
D Wyatt 
ASilby 
G Hughes 
J Bell 
J May 
RGhei 

Meetings attended 

5 
5 
3 
5 
5 
3 
5 
4 
4 
4 
0 

Out of a possible 

5 
5 
5 
5 
5 
5 
5 
4 
5 
5 
0 

The Finance and Resources Committee is a sub-committee of the Trust Board. Its purpose is to provide 
guidance and assistance to the Trust Board on all matters related to the finance, resources, premises and health 
& safety of the Trust. This includes preparing and approving annual budgets, monitoring financial performance 
against that budget, reviewing delegated authorities, ensuring all transactions are conducted in accordance with 
good practice, to ensure best value is achieved in all financial transactions and to receive and (where relevant) 
respond to period audit reports on the Trust and of public funds. This committee also acts as the Trust's Audit & 
Risk Committee. 

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows: 

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible 

DGray 4 4 
J May 2 4 
J Mclucas 4 4 
D Wyatt 4 4 
R Thiele 3 4 
J Bell 3 4 
J Bolodeoku 4 4 

The Trust Board's structure and composition was reviewed comprehensively and adapted to reflect the move 
from a standalone academy trust to a multi academy trust in March 2024. The structure matches trustees' skills 
with areas of responsibility and allows for continuous accountability. The trustee structure and composition are 
kept, as a minimum, under annual review. Within the last year suitably experienced trustees have been 
appointed to new link trustee roles of pupil premium and data protection which were identified as being required. 
The Trust Board has also reviewed its decision to keep the Audit and Risk Committee as part of Finance and 
Resources Committee. 
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Review of value for money 

AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED) 

As accounting officer, the CEO has the responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in the use of 
public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider 
societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in return for the taxpayer resources 
received. 

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust use of its resources has provided good value for money during 
each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the 
use of benchmarking data wihere available. The Accounting Officer for the Trust has delivered improved value 
for money during the year as follows: 

• Educational outcomes have been sustained and improved with the same resources through the curriculum 
being delivered in different ways to reduce costs wihere needed. 

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its capital funding has provided not only good value for 
money but assurance that the Trust's schools are safe, well maintained and compliant with relevant legislation. 
During each academic year reports to the Board of Trustees demonstrate how capital funds have been used and 
plan to be used for a wide range of estates projects. 

The Accounting Officer for the Trust has, during the year: 

• Implemented an improved Capital Programme prioritising safety and ensuring compliance 

Conflict of interest 

An up-tcrdate and complete register of interests for members, trustees, governors and for senior employees with 
financial responsibilities is maintained by our Lead Governance Professional. The register for trustees and 
governors is published on the trust or schools' websites and kept up to date. In addition, declaration of interests 
is an agenda item on each member, trustee and governor agenda. Where conflict of interests or potential 
conflicts of interest are identified the member, trustee, governor or senior employee will not take part in the 
agenda item pertaining to the conflict and will not have a vote, if relevant. 

Conflict of interests are identified before any procurement begins such as a tender process as well as 
appointment to a role within the Academy Trust. 

The purpose of the system of internal control 

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of 
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify 
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Trust's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood 
of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively 
and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Agape Multi Academy Trust for the period 
ended 31 August 2025 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. 
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Capacity to handle risk 

AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed, together with the operating, 
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is 
of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant 
risks that has been in place for the period from incorporation of the Trust to 31 August 2025 and up to the date of 
approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of 
Trustees. 
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AGAPE MUL Tl ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Capacity to handle risk (continued) 

The risk and control framework 

The Trust's system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information and 
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. 
In particular it includes: 

• comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports 
which are reviewed and agreed upon by the Trustees. 

• regular reviews by the finance and general purposes committee of reports which indicate financial 
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure 
programmes. 

• setting targets to measure financial and other performance. 
• dearty defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines. 
• delegation of authority and segregation of duties. 
• identification and management of risks. 

During the year Responsible Officer visits were agreed by the Trust Board. 

• A trust wide safeguarding visit carried out by an external person 
• Altwood School had an additional health and safety visit carried out by Quadriga 
• The Piggott School had an additional pupil premium visit carried out by an external person 

The reports were shared with the Headteacher along with an action plan to be presented to the Local Governing 
Committee. 

Review of effectiveness 

As an accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control. During the year in question, the review has been informed by: 

• the financial management and governance self-assessment process or the school resource management 
self-assessment tool; 

• the work of the external reviewers carrying out internal scrutiny . 
• the work of the external auditor; 

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal 
control and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place. 

Conclusion 

Based on the advice of the finance and risk committee and the Acounting Oficer, the Board of Trustees is of the 
opinion that the academy trust has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and 
control. 

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on their behalf by: 

RThiele 
Chair of Trustees 
Date: 11th December 2025 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 
(A company limited by guarantee) 

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE 

As Accounting Officer of Agape Multi Academy Trust, I confirm that I have had due regard ta the framework af 
authorities governing regularity, propriety and compliance, including the trust's funding agreement with DfE, and 
the requirements af the Academy Trust Handbook, including responsibilities for estates safety and management 
I have also considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust board of trustees and DtE of material 
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions af all funding, including for estates safety 
and management. 

I confirm that I, and the board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all funds by 
the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the framework of authorities. 

I confirm that the following instances of material irregularity, impropriety or non-compliance have been 
discovered ta date and have been notified to the board of trustees and DfE. If any further instances are identified 
after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board af trustees and DfE: 

The Piggott Church of England School incurred two instances of external fraud during the year, bath resulting in 
no financial loss and are listed below: 
• On 8 September 2024, a payment of £527.40 was processed using the school business card. Upon receipt 

of the statement, the transaction was immediately reported to the Lloyds Fraud Team. It was classified as 
suspicious, and the full amount was successfully refunded to the credit card, resulting in no financial loss. 
Following this, the charge card was cancelled and a replacement card was issued. 

• On 24 November 2024, a cheque for £194.12 was intercepted and fraudulently altered ta £2,000, payable to 
an unauthorised individual. The discrepancy was identified promptly and reported to Lloyds. The payment 
was successfully stopped during the clearing cycle, with a full recovery made, meaning no financial loss ta 
the Trust. This incident was reported ta the police, and the Trust has since ceased using cheques except 
where absolutely necessary, sending these via tracked postage. 

llfr7-. 
DGray 
Accounting Officer 
Date: 11111 December 2025 
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AGAPE MUL Tl ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are 
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies 
Accounts Direction published by the Department for Education, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations. 

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law, 
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, 
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are 
required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
• observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 

2024 to 2025; 
• make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

charitable company will continue in business. 

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain 
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of 
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies 
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial 
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from DfE have been applied for the 
purposes intended. 

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information 
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by: 

~~ 
RThiele 
Chair of Trustees 

Date: 11th December 2025 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF AGAPE 
MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Agape Multi Academy Trust (the 'academy') for the year ended 31 
August 2025 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash 
flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards 
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP 2019 and the 
Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by the Department for Education. 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as at 31 August 2025 and of its incoming 
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended; 

• have been prope~y prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by the Department for Education. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including 
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or 
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue as a 
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the 
relevant sections of this report. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF AGAPE 
MULTI ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED) 

Other information 

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements 
and our Audito~s report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the 
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the 
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial 
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

• the information given in the Trustees' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are 
prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 

• the Trustees' Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy and its environment obtained in the course of 
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been 
received from branches not visited by us; or 

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 
• certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

Responsibilities of trustees 

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of 
the Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements 
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operations, 
or have no realistic a~emative but to do so. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF AGAPE 
MULTI ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED) 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including 
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk 
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions 
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. 

The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves 
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation. 

The specific procedures for this engagement that we designed and performed to detect material misstatements 
in respect of irregularities, including fraud, were as follows: 

• Enquiry of management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litigation and 
claims; 

• Enquiry of management and those charged with governance to identify any material instances of non­
compliance with laws and regulations; 

• Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance 
with applicable laws and regulations; 

• Performing audit work to address the risk of irregularities due to management override of controls, including 
testing of journal entries and other adjustments for appropriateness, evaluating the business rationale of 
significant transactions outside the normal course of business and reviewing accounting estimates for 
evidence of bias. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.oro.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our 
Auditor's report. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF AGAPE 
MULTI ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED) 

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the Academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the 
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members 
those matters we are required to state to them in an Audito~s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its 
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Danren O'Connor  BSc(Hons)  ACA  FCCA  (Senior  Statutory  Auditor) 
for and on behalf  of 
James Cowper Kreston Audit 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor 
Apex 
Forbury Road 
Reading 
Berkshire 
RG11AX 

Date: 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO AGAPE 
MULTI ACADEMY TRUST AND THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR EDUCATION 

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 12 August 2025 and further to the requirements of 
the Department for Education (DfE) as included in the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and 
Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts 2024 to 2025, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited 
assurance about whether anything has come to our attention that would suggest, in all material respects, the 
expenditure disbursed and income received by Agape Multi Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2024 to 
31 August 2025 have not been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and that the financial 
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them. 

This report is made solely to Agape Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education in accordance 
with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Agape Multi 
Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education those matters we are required to state in a report and 
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone 
other than Agape Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education, for our work, for this report, or 
for the conclusion we have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of Agape Multi Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting 
accountant 

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Agape Multi Academy Trust's funding 
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 27 February 2024 and the Academy Trust Handbook, 
extant from 1 September 2024, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the 
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical 
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the 
requirements of the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy 
Trusts 2024 to 2025. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which 
suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 
2024 to 31 August 2025 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial 
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them. 

Approach 

Our work on regularity included a review of the internal controls policies and procedures that have been 
implemented and an assessment of their design and effectiveness to understand how the academy complied 
with the framework of authorities. We also reviewed the reports commissioned by the trustees to assess the 
internal controls throughout the year. 

Specific work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes: 

• reviewing the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Trustees and other evidence made available to 
us,relevant to our consideration of regularity; 

• a review of the objectives and activities of the academy, with reference to the income streams and other 
information available to us as auditors of the academy; 

• testing of a sample of payroll payments to staff; 
• testing of a sample of payments to suppliers and other third parties; 
• testing of a sample of grants received and other income streams; 

We performed detailed testing based on our assessment of the risk of material irregularity, impropriety and 
noncompliance. This work was integrated with our audit on the financial statements where appropriate and 
included analytical review and detailed substantive testing of transactions. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO AGAPE 
MULTI ACADEMY TRUST AND THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR EDUCATION (CONTINUED) 

Conclusion 

In the course of our work, except for the matters listed below nothing has come to our attention which suggest in 
all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2024 to 31 
August 2025 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not 
conform to the authorities which govern them. 

Agape Multi Academy Trust incurred two instances of external fraud during the year. The Trust has reviewed its 
processes, and have implemented changes to their controls for future transactions. 

James Cowper Kreston Audit 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor 

Apex 
Forbury Road 
Reading 
Berkshire 
RG11AX 

Date: 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

Restricted 
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total 

funds funds funds funds funds 
2025 2025 2025 2025 2024 

Note £ £ £ £ £ 

Income from: 

Donations and capital 
grants: 3 

Other donations and 
capital grants 4,844 30,491 131,392 166,727 303,565 

Transfer of existing 
academy 2,131,912 

Other trading activities 480,112 93,156 573,268 399,654 

Investments 6 18,105 2 18,107 927 

Charitable activities 4 22,567 19,493,491 19,516,058 15,656,394 

Total income 525,628 19,617,140 131,392 20,274,160 18,492,452 

Expenditure on: 

Charitable activities 7 188,521 19,699,758 970,231 20,858,510 16,830,025 

Total expenditure 188,521 19,699,758 970,231 20,858,510 16,830,025 

Net income/ 
(expenditure) 337,107 (82,618) (838,839) (584,350) 1,662,427 

Transfers between 
funds 19 (171,890) 90,102 81,788 

Nat movement in 
funds before other 
recognised 
gains/(losses) 165,217 7,484 (757,051) (584,350) 1,662,427 

Other recognised 
gains/(lossas): 

Actuarial gains/(losses) 
on defined benefit 
pension schemes 26 1,790,000 1,790,000 (344,000) 

Net movement in 
funds 165,217 1,797,484 (757,051) 1,205,650 1,318,427 

Reconciliation of 
funds: 

Total funds brought 
forward 663,969 (1,671,326) 21,281,266 20,273,909 18,955,482 

Net movement in funds 165,217 1,797,484 (757,051) 1,205,650 1,318,427 

Total funds carried 
forward 829,186 126,158 20,524,215 21,479,559 20,273,909 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT) 
(CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year. 

The notes on pages 34 to 61 form part of these financial statements. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07682284 

BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2025 

2025 2024 
Note £ £ 

Fixed assets 

Tangible assets 14 20,346,826 20,996,969 

20,346,826 20,996,969 

Current assets 

Stocks 15 10,542 9,092 

Debtors 16 849,222 938,806 

Cash at bank and in hand 1,487,310 1,332,361 

2,347,074 2,280,259 

Current liabilities 

Creditors: amounts falling due within one 
year 17 (1,158,495) (1 '150,992) 

Net current assets 1,188,579 1,129,267 

Total assets less current liabilities 21,535,405 22,126,236 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more 
than one year 18 (37,846) (52,327) 

Net assets excluding pension liability 21,497,559 22,073,909 

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 26 (18,000) (1 ,800,000) 

Total net assets 21,479,559 20,273,909 

Funds of the Academy 

Restricted funds: 

Fixed asset funds 19 20,524,215 21,281,266 

Restricted income funds 19 144,158 128,674 

Restricted funds excluding pension asset 19 20,668,373 21,409,940 

Pension reserve 19 (18,000) (1 ,800,000) 

Total restricted funds 19 20,650,373 19,609,940 

Unrestricted income funds 19 829,186 663,969 

Total funds 21,479,559 20,273,909 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07682284 

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) 
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2025 

The financial statements on pages 29 to 61 were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees and are 
signed on their behalf, by: 

R Thiele 
Chair Of Trustees 
Date: 

The notes on pages 34 to 61 form part of these financial statements. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

Note 

Cash flo- from operating activities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 21 

Cash flo- from investing activities 23 

Cash flo- from financing activities 22 

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 24,25 

The notes on pages 34 to 61 form part of these financial statements 
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2025 
£ 

333,151 

(161,960) 

(16,242) 

154,949 

1,332,361 

1,487,310 

2024 
£ 

1,371,999 

(978,354) 

(14,363) 

379,282 

953,099 

1,332,381 



1. Accounting policies 

AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

The principal activity of the Agape Multi Academy Trust is to provide education for pupils aged 4 to 
19. The Trust is an exempt charity and a company limited by guarantee (company number: 
07682284). It is incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The address of the registered office is The 
Piggott Church of England School, Twyford Road, Wargrave, RG10 80S. 

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, 
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below. 

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements 

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have 
been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting 
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 1 02), the Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in 
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by DfE, 
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. 

Agape Multi Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102. 

1.2 Fund accounting 

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the 
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees. 

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes 
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose. 

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the 
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

1. Accounting policies (continued) 

1.3 Income 

All income is recognised once the academy trust has entitlement to the income, it is probable that the 
income will be received and the amount of income receivable can be measured reliably. 

o Grants 
Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure 
account on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not 
expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is 
received in advance of entitlement of receipt, its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as 
deferred income. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued. 
meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and 
its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related 
conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued. 

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which 
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as 
a liability. 

Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset 
on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the 
restricted fixed asset fund. 

o Donations 
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where the receipt is probable and the amount can be 
reliably measured. 

o other income 
other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent 
the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services. 

1.4 Expenditure 

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit 
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and 
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs 
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs 
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly 
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are 
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with 
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation 
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use. 

o Charitable activities 
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and 
costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities. 

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

1. Accounting policies (continued) 

1.5 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation 

Assets costing £2,500 for Agape Multi Academy Trust are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and 
are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment. 

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the 
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated 
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding 
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset 
fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on 
the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial 
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on 
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund. 

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under 
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its 
expected useful life, as follows: 

Depreciation is provided on the following bases: 

Buildings 
Land 
Furniture and fixtures 
Computer equipment 
Motor vehicles 

- 12-50 years 
- Over the life of the lease 
- 10% straight line 
- 20%-33% straight line 
- 20% straight line 

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying 
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment 
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities. 

1.6 Operating leases 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of financial activities on a straight 
line basis over the lease term. 

1.7 Stocks 

Catering stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

1.8 Debtors 

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered. 
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due. 

1.9 Cash at bank and in hand 

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity 
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

1. Accounting policies (continued) 

1.10 Liabilities and provisions 

Liabilities and provisions are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, 
and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount 
that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as 
advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide. Provisions are measured at the best 
estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money 
is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised 
within interest payable and similar charges. 

1.11 Financial instruments 

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial 
assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement bases are as follows: 

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments 
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments. 
Amounts due to the Academy Trust's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any 
impairment. Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value. 

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are 
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 17 and 18. Taxation and social security are not 
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a 
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver 
services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to the Academy Trust's 
wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment. 

1.12Taxation 

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance 
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax 
purposes. 

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital 
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or 
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains 
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

1. Accounting policies (continued) 

1.13 Pensions 

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers" Pension 
Scheme ("'TPS"I and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('"LGPS""). These are defined benefit 
schemes. 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of 
pensions over employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost 
is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are 
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective 
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign 
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for 
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate. 

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the 
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair 
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and 
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of 
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially 
and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the 
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and 
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the 
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated 
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to 
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets 
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses. 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment 

3. 

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions: 

The Academy Trust trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting 
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The 
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a 
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The 
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any 
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 26, will impact the carrying amount of the 
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial 
valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 
August 2025. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full 
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability. 

Depreciation 

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual values, where 
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary 
depending on a number of factors. Residual value assessments consider issues such as the remaining 
life of the asset and projected disposal values. 

Income from donations and capital grants 

Restricted 
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total 

funds funds funds funds funds 
2025 2025 2025 2025 2024 

£ £ £ £ £ 

Donations 4,844 30,491 64,187 99,522 78,397 

Grants 67,205 67,205 225,168 

Transfer of existing academy 2,131,912 

Total2025 4,844 30,491 131,392 166,727 2,435,477 

Total2024 202,342 (426,262) 2,659,397 2,435,477 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

4. Funding for the Academy's charitable activities 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
funds funds funds funds 
2025 2025 2025 2024 

£ £ £ £ 
Educational operations 

DfE grants 

General Annual Grant (GAG) 12,699,830 12,699,830 10,123,920 

Other DfE Group grants 131,201 131,201 124,302 

Other grants 934,707 934,707 382,932 

16-19 funding 3,367,554 3,367,554 3,024,505 

Pupil Premium 328,242 328,242 214,979 

CSBG grants 381,150 381,150 

17,842,684 17,842,684 13,870,638 
Other Government grants 

Other grants 957,022 957,022 740,052 

957,022 957,022 740,052 
Other income from the Academy's 
educational operations 22,567 693,785 716,352 1,045,704 

Total2025 22,567 19,493,491 19,516,058 15,656,394 

Total2024 15,656,394 15,656,394 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

5. Income from other trading activities 

Hire of facilities 

Other income 

School activities 

Sales materials 

Total2025 

Total2024 

6. Investment income 

Investment income 

Total2024 

Unrestricted 
funds 
2025 

£ 

264,651 

19,657 

43,407 

152,197 

460,112 

364,519 

Unrestricted 
funds 
2025 

£ 

16,105 

927 
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Restricted 
funds 
2025 

£ 

4,743 

46,445 

32,146 

7,622 

93,156 

35,135 

Restricted 
funds 
2025 

£ 

2 

Total Total 
funds funds 
2025 2024 

£ £ 

269,394 160,163 

68,302 95,746 

75,553 52,664 

160,019 70,641 

573,268 399,654 

399,654 

Total Total 
funds funds 
2025 2024 

£ £ 

18,107 927 

927 



AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

7. Expenditure 

Staff Costs Premises Other costs Total Total 
2025 2025 2025 2025 2024 

£ £ £ £ £ 

Educational operations: 

Direct costs 13,804,035 970,231 1,164,018 15,938,284 12,649,730 

Allocated support costs 2,351,547 1,082,195 1,486,484 4,920,226 4,180,295 

Total2025 16,155,582 2,052,426 2,650,502 20,858,510 16,830,025 

Total2024 12,463,895 1,700,498 2,665,632 16,830,025 
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AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

8. Analysis of expenditure by activities 

Support 
Direct costs costs 

2025 2025 
£ £ 

Educational operations 15,938,284 4,920,226 

Total2024 12,649,730 4,180,295 

Analysis of support costs 

Staff costs 

Cleaning 

Rates, light and heat 

Recruitment and support 

Maintenance of premises and equipment 

Insurance 

Security and transport 

IT costs 

Printing, posting, marketing and stationery 

School trips 

Catering 

Bank charges 

Other support costs 

Governance costs 

Total2025 
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Total Total 
funds funds 
2025 2024 

£ £ 

20,858,510 16,830,025 

16,830,025 

Total Total 
funds funds 
2025 2024 

£ £ 

2,351,545 1,678,165 

355,075 247,534 

413,061 382,576 

56,054 75,199 

222,993 135,991 

70,594 64,223 

20,469 41,726 

153,891 160,402 

125,806 123,085 

675,207 991,824 

152,509 107,279 

9,873 11,492 

289,628 141,839 

23,521 18,960 

4,920,226 4,180,295 



AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

9. Net income/(expenditure) 

Net income/( expenditure) for the year includes: 

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 

Fees paid to auditor for: 

-audit 

- other services 

10. Staff 

a. Staff costs and employee benefits 

Staff costs during the year were as follows: 

Wages and salaries 

Social security costs 

Pension costs 

b. Staff numbars 

2025 
£ 

970,231 

18,300 

5,000 

2025 
£ 

11,853,897 

1,308,409 

2,993,276 

16,155,582 

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the year was as follows: 

2025 
No. 

Teachers 164 

Administration and support 208 

Management 19 

391 
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2024 
£ 

828,448 

15,910 

3,950 

2024 
£ 

9,391,292 

902,942 

2,169,661 

12,463,895 

2024 
No. 

157 

201 

21 

379 



10. Staff (continued) 

c. Higher paid staff 

AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded 
£60,000 was: 

2025 2024 
No. No. 

In the band £60,001 -£70,000 20 6 

In the band £70,001 -£80,000 2 5 

In the band £80,001 -£90,000 6 
In the band £90,001 -£100,000 1 

In the band £100,001 -£110,000 1 

In the band £110,001-£120,000 

In the band £120,001-£130,000 1 

In the band £160,001-£170,000 

In the band £170,001-£180,000 1 

d. Key management personnel 

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior 
management team as listed on page 2. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer 
pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management 
personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £953,132 (2024: £795, 190). 

11. Central services 

The Academy has provided the following central services to its academies during the year: 

• CEO'stime 
• Finance and administration services 
• HR support 
• ICT support services 
• Audit and accountancy 

The Academy charges for these services on the following basis: 

The trust funded the provision of these central services this year by charging each academy a central 
services fee of 5% of GAG for The Piggott Church of England School and 5% of GAG for Altwood Church 
of England School. 

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows: 

The Piggott Church of England School 

Attwood Church of England School 

Total 
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2025 
£ 

398,724 

233,100 

631,824 

2024 
£ 

184,111 

94,066 

278,177 
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(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

12. Trustees' remuneration and expenses 

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with 
the Academy Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services 
they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment. The 
value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows: 

D Gray 

J Humphrey (resigned 29 
February 2024) 

Remuneration 
Pension contributions paid 
Remuneration 

Pension contributions paid 
M Smith (resigned 29 February Remuneration 
2024) 

Pension contributions paid 

2025 
£ 

170,000 -175,000 
35,000 • 40,000 

0-5,000 

0-5,000 
0-5,000 

0-5,000 

2024 
£ 

165,000. 170,000 
40,000. 45,000 
25,000. 30,000 

5,000. 10,000 
25,000. 30,000 

5,000. 10,000 

During the year ended 31 August 2025, expenses totalling £257 were reimbursed or paid directly to one 
Trustee (2024: £nil). 

13. Trustees' and Officers' insurance 

The Academy trust has opted into the Department of Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an 
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects 
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on 
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. II is not possible to quantify the Trustees and 
officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership. 
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14. Tangible fixed assets 

Land and Furniture Computer 
buildings and fixtures equipment Total 

£ £ £ £ 

Cost or valuation 

At 1 September 2024 24,170,064 5,206,845 1,069,395 30,446,304 

Additions 186,378 68,274 65,436 320,088 

Disposals (18,370) (18,370) 

At 31 August 2025 24,356,442 5,275,119 1,116,461 30,748,022 

Depreciation 

At 1 September 2024 5,331,995 3,276,100 841,240 9,449,335 

Charge for the year 482,744 355,793 131,694 970,231 

On disposals (18,370) (18,370) 

At 31 August 2025 5,814,739 3,631,893 954,564 10,401,196 

Net book value 

At 31 August 2025 18,541,703 1,643,226 161,897 20,346,826 

At 31 August 2024 16,636,069 1,930,745 226,155 20,996,969 

Included within Land and Buildings is land of £1 ,620,038 (2024: £1 ,635,695). 

15. Stocks 

2025 2024 
£ £ 

Catering Stock 10,542 9,092 
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16. Debtors 

Due within one year 

Trade debtors 

Other debtors 

AGAPE MULTI ACADEMY TRUST 

(A company limited by guarantee) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 

Prepayments and accrued income 

17. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 

Salix and CIF loans 

Trade creditors 

Other taxation and social security 

Other creditors 

Accruals and deferred income 

Deferred income at 1 September 2024 

Resources deferred during the year 

Amounts released from previous periods 

Deferred income at 31 August 2025 

2025 2024 
£ £ 

112,470 32,793 

53,191 106,053 

683,561 799,960 

849,222 938,806 

2025 2024 
£ £ 

14,482 16,243 

281,606 266,043 

318,297 256,193 

6,125 10,244 

537,985 602,269 

1,158,495 1,150,992 

2025 2024 
£ £ 

336,551 310,034 

407,975 336,551 

(336,551) (310,034) 

407,975 336,551 

The income that has been deferred consist of grants for the Autumn term received before the year end 
and income for trips taking place in the next academic year. 
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18. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 

Salix and CIF loans 

2025 2024 
£ £ 

37,846 52,327 

In 2016, The Piggott Church of England School received an interest free Salix energy efficiency loan and 
a CIF loan as part of its funding for a project to replace boilers and roofs. The loan is repayable over 8 
years, starting September 2017. 

In 2020, The Piggott Church of England School received an interest free Salix loan as part of its funding 
for a project to replace the roofs. The loan is repayable over 5 years starting March 2022. 

In 2023, Altwood Church of England School received an interest free Salix loan as part of its funding for a 
project. The loan is repayable over 8 years starting in September 2023. 
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19. Statement of funds 

Balance at 1 Balance at 
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August 

2024 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2025 
£ £ £ £ £ £ 

Unrestricted 
funds 

General Funds 663,969 525,628 (188,521) (171,890) 829,186 

Restricted 
general funds 

General Annual 
Grant 70,733 16,067,384 (16,168,878) 100,517 69,756 

Pupil Premium 35,659 328,242 (315,494) 48,407 

Other Grants 22,282 987,515 (991,965) 17,832 

Other Income 1,540,214 (1,540,214) 

School Fund 693,785 (675,207) (10,415) 8,163 

Pension reserve (1,800,000) (8,000) 1,790,000 (18,000) 

(1,671,326) 19,617,140 (19,699,758) 90,102 1,790,000 126,158 

Restricted fixed 
asset funds 

In kind support-
buildings 20,997,241 13,201 (970,231) 306,882 20,347,093 

Capital grants 
and donation 194,614 54,004 (156,902) 91,716 

3G Pitch sinking 
fund 89,411 (4,005) 85,406 

Fixed asset 
donations 64,187 (64,187) 

21,281,266 131,392 (970,231) 81,788 20,524,215 

Total Restricted 
funds 19,609,940 19,748,532 (20,669,989) 171,890 1,790,000 20,650,373 

Total funds 20,273,909 20,274,160 (20,858,510) 1,790,000 21,479,559 
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19. Statement of funds (continued) 

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows: 

Restricted General Funds - DIE grants (including GAG), which must be used to meet the costs of running 
Agape Multi Academy Trust. Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the acadmey trust 
was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2025. 

Restricted Other Funds - represents donations and fundraising income generated by the school, which is 
for restricted use as stipulated by the donor along with trip income and expenditure. 

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds - these funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital 
purposes imposed by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, Department for Education or other 
funders where the assets acquired or created is held for a specific purpose. 

3G Pitch Sinking Fund - represents funds for the replacement of the 3G pitch. 

Unrestricted Funds - represents income generated by the school (such as lettings and hire of facilities) 
and any other donations or investment income, which is not restricted for any specific purpose and can be 
spent as determined by the Governing Body. 

Transfers - The transfers reflect the cost of fixed assets incurred above that of capital grants received 
from the DIE. The transfers adjust the balance of the restricted fixed asset fund so that the balance 
agrees back to the net book value of fixed assets, plus capital funds unspent at 31 August 2025. 
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19. Statement of funds (continued) 

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows: 

Balance at 
1 September Transfers 

2023 Income Expenditure in/out 
£ £ £ £ 

Unrestricted 
funds 

General Funds 393,213 567,788 (127,352) (169,680) 

Restricted 
general funds 

General Annual 
Grant 14,778,513 (14,786,615) 78,835 

Pupil Premium 214,979 (204,503) 25,183 

Other Local DfE 
grants 124,302 (124,302) 

Other Grants 21,200 774,473 (806,805) 33,414 

Pension reserve (877,000) (627,000) 48,000 

(855,800) 15,265,267 (15,874,225) 137,432 

Restricted fixed 
asset funds 

In kind support-
buildings 18,276,046 2,344,921 (828,448) 1,204,722 

Capital grants 
and donation 1,001,754 270,985 (1 ,078, 125) 

3G Pilch sinking 
fund 140,269 (50,858) 

Fixed asset 
donations 43,491 (43,491) 

19,418,069 2,659,397 (828,448) 32,248 

Total Restricted 
funds 18,562,269 17,924,664 (16,702,673) 169,680 

Total funds 18,955,482 18,492,452 (16,830,025) 
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Balance at 
Gains/ 31 August 

(Losses) 2024 
£ £ 

663,969 

70,733 

35,659 

22,282 

(344,000) (1 ,800,000) 

(344,000) (1 ,671 ,326) 

20,997,241 

194,614 

89,411 

21,281,266 

(344,000) 19,609,940 

(344,000) 20,273,909 
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19. Statement of funds (continued) 

Total funds analysis by academy 

Fund balances at 31 August 2025 were allocated as follows: 

The Piggott Church of England School 

Attwood Church of England School 

Agape Mu~i Academy Trust 

Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve 

Restricted fixed asset fund 

Pension reserve 

Total 

Total cost analysis by academy 

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows: 

Teaching 
and 

educational Other Other costs 
support support Educational excluding 

staff costs staff costs supplies depreciation 
£ £ £ £ 

The Piggott 
Church of 
England School 9,425,062 1,149,227 307,034 2,077,816 

Attwood Church 
of England 
School 4,378,974 679,899 313,276 943,315 

Agape Multi 
Academy Trust 522,420 3,983 87,273 

Total 13,804,036 2,351,546 624,293 3,108,404 
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2025 2024 
£ £ 

665,321 390,336 

283,527 396,827 

24,496 5,480 

973,344 792,643 

20,524,215 21,281,266 

(18,000) (1 ,800,000) 

21,479,559 20,273,909 

Total Total 
2025 2024 

£ £ 

12,959,139 12,802,541 

6,315,464 2,925,437 

613,676 273,599 

19,888,279 16,001,577 
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20. Analysis of net assets between funds 

Analysis of net assets between funds -current year 

Tangible fixed assets 

Current assets 

Creditors due within one year 

Creditors due in more than one year 

Provisions for liabilities and charges 

Total 

Unrestricted 
funds 
2025 

£ 

858,188 

(29,002) 

829,186 

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year 

Unrestricted 
funds 
2024 

£ 

Tangible fixed assets 

Current assets 690,842 

Creditors due within one year (26,873) 

Creditors due in more than one year 

Provisions for liabilities and charges 

Total 663,969 
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Restricted 
funds 

2025 
£ 

1,279,280 

(1 ,097,276) 

(37,846) 

(18,000) 

126,158 

Restricted 
funds 
2024 

£ 

1,161,260 

(980,259) 

(52,327) 

(1 ,800,000) 

(1 ,671 ,326) 

Restricted 
fixed asset 

funds 
2025 

£ 

20,346,826 

209,606 

(32,217) 

20,524,215 

Restricted 
fixed asset 

funds 
2024 

£ 

20,996,969 

428,157 

(143,860) 

21,281,266 

Total 
funds 
2025 

£ 

20,346,826 

2,347,074 

(1,158,495) 

(37,846) 

(18,000) 

21,479,559 

Total 
funds 
2024 

£ 

20,996,969 

2,280,259 

(1 '150,992) 

(52,327) 

(1 ,800,000) 

20,273,909 
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21. Reconciliation of net (expenditure)lincome to net cash flow from operating activities 

Net (expenditure)lincome for the year (as per Statement of financial 
activities) 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation 

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income 

Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited 

Defined benefit pension scheme net finance cost 

Decrease/(lncrease) in stocks 

(lncrease)/decrease in debtors 

Increase in creditors 

Interest received 

Tangible assets acquired on conversion 

Salix loans acquired on conversion 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

22. Cash flows from financing activities 

Repayments of borrowing 

Net cash used in financing activities 

23. Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of tangible fixed assets 

Capital grants from DfE Group 

Interest received 

Net cash used in investing activities 
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2025 2024 
£ £ 

(584,350) 1,662,427 

970,231 

(131,392) 

8,000 

(1,450) 

(30,684) 

120,903 

(18,107) 

333,151 

2025 
£ 

(16,242) 

(16,242) 

2025 
£ 

(431,727) 

251,660 

18,107 

(161,960) 

828,448 

(225, 168) 

627,000 

(48,000) 

(1 ,848) 

404,326 

442,480 

(927) 

(2,344,921) 

28,182 

1,371,999 

2024 
£ 

(14,363) 

(14,363) 

2024 
£ 

(1 ,204,449) 

225,168 

927 

(978,354) 
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24. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 

2025 2024 
£ £ 

Cash in hand and at bank 1,487,310 1,332,381 

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,487,310 1,332,381 

25. Analysis of changes in net debt 

At1 
September At31 

2024 Cash flows August 2025 
£ £ £ 

Cash at bank and in hand 1,332,361 154,949 1,487,310 

Debt due within 1 year (16,243) 1,761 (14,482) 

Debt due after 1 year (52,327) 14,481 (37,846) 

1,263,791 171,191 1,434,982 

26. Pension commitments 

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension 
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Barnett Waddingham. Both are multi­
employer defined benefit schemes. 

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31 
March 2022. 

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year. 

Teachers' Pension Scheme 

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by 
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in 
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment. 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a 
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension 
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament. 
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26. Pension commitments (continued) 

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme 

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS 
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised 
and managed appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions. 

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of 
benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 
2020. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the 
SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPl. The 
key elements of the valuation outcome are: 

• employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (induding a 0.08% administration 
levy). This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no 
change in member benefits is needed. 

• Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for 
service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions 
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a 
notional past service deficit of £39,800 million. 

The result of this valuation was implemented on 1 April 2024.The next valuation result is due to be 
implemented from 1 April2027. 

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,656,257 (2024- £1,591 ,644). 

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website 
(https:/lwww. teacherspensions.co.uklnews/employers/2019/04/leachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx). 

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded mu~i-employer pension scheme.The 
academy trust is unable to identify its share of the unde~ying assets and liabilities of the plan. Accordingly, 
the academy trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its 
contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out 
above, the information available on the scheme. 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee 
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2025 was £860,000 (2024: 
£372,000), of wihich employer's contributions totalled £667,000 (2024: £294,000) and employees' 
contributions totalled £193,000 (2024: £78,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 21.6 
per cent for employers and 5.5-12.5 per cent for employees. 

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Academy Trust, who were the 
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who 
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who 
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the 
Academy Trust at the balance sheet date. 

Pa~iament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the 
event of an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be 
met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 
2022, the Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a pa~iamentary 
minute published on GOV. UK. 
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26. Pension commitments (continued) 

Principal actuarial assumptions 

Rate of increase in salaries 

Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 

Inflation assumption (CPI) 

2025 2024 
% % 

3.50 3.85 

2.50 2.85 

6.00 5.05 

2.95 3.15 

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. 
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

2025 2024 
Years Years 

Retiring today 

Males 21.8 20.7 

Females 24.1 23.6 

Retiring in 20 years 

Males 23.4 22.0 

Females 25.8 25.0 

Sensitivity analysis 

2025 2024 
£000 £000 

Discount rate +0.1% 121 147 

Discount rate -0.1% (124) (151) 

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase (174) (242) 

Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease 169 235 

CPI rate +0.1% (2) (151) 

CPI rate -0.1% 3 147 
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26. Pension commitments (continued) 

Share of scheme assets 

The Academy"s share of the assets in the scheme was: 

At31 
August2025 

Equities 

Other bonds 

Property 

Cash and other liquid assets 

Other 

Totel market value of assets 

The actual return on scheme assets was £102,000 (2024- £-171,000). 

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows: 

Current service cost 

Net interest on defined liability asset 

Administrative expenses 

Totel amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows: 

Opening defined benefit obligation 

Transferred in on existing academies joining the trust 

Current service cost 

Interest cost 

Employee contributions 

Actuarial (gain)/ losses 

Benefits paid 

At31 August 
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£ 

4,930,000 

823,000 

593,000 

205,000 

703,000 

7,254,000 

2025 
£ 

(600,000) 

(75,000) 

(5,000) 

(680,000) 

2025 
£ 

7,980,000 

600,000 

403,000 

193,000 

(1,693,000) 

(211,000) 

7,272,000 

At31 August 
2024 

£ 

4,243,000 

731,000 

501,000 

135,000 

570,000 

6,180,000 

2024 
£ 

(1,749,000) 

(36,000) 

(1,785,000) 

2024 
£ 

4,339,000 

2,641,000 

210,000 

195,000 

78,000 

549,000 

(32,000) 

7,980,000 
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26. Pension commitments (continued) 

Changes in the fair value of the Academy's share of scheme assets were as follows: 

2025 
£ 

Opening fair value of scheme assets 6,180,000 

Transferred in on existing academies joining the trust 

Interest income 328,000 

Actuarial gains 97,000 

Employer contributions 667,000 

Employee contributions 193,000 

Benefits paid (211,000) 

Administration expenses (5,000) 

At31 August 7,249,000 

27. Operating lease commitments 

2024 
£ 

3,462,000 

2,014,000 

159,000 

205,000 

294,000 

78,000 

(32,000) 

6,180,000 

At 31 August 2025 the Academy Trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under 
non-cancellable operating leases as follows: 

2025 2024 
£ £ 

Amounts payable: 

Within 1 year 40,677 36,915 

Between 1 and 5 year 111,510 79,104 

152,187 116,019 

28. Members' liability 

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the 
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a 
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted 
before he/she ceases to be a member. 
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29. Related party transactions 

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from 
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the 
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with 
the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the DIE of all transactions 
made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy's 
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party 
transactions. 

No related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain trustees' 
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 12. 

30. Agency arrangements 

The Academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for DIE. In the accounting 
period ending 31 August 2025 the trust received £15,616 (2024: £11 ,434), had a brought forward figure of 
£14,742 (2024: £4,407) along with inheriting £Nil (2024: £6,449) on conversion and disbursed £18,861 
(2024: £7,548) from the fund. Funds of £11,497 (2024: £14,742) relating to undistributed funds that may 
be repayable to DIE is unspent have been carried forward. 
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